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NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 
NOTICE is hereby given that the 17th Annual General Meeting of the Members of Lakhotia Polyesters 
(India) Limited will be held on Saturday, November 05, 2022 at 2.30 p.m. through Video Conferencing 
(“VC”)/Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS:  
 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 

March 31, 2022 including Audited Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 and the Statement of Profit 
and Loss for the financial year ended on that date and the Reports of the Board of Directors and 
Statutory Auditors thereon. 
 

2. To appoint Mr. Ashok kumar Khajanchi (DIN: 01532044), who retires by rotation in terms of Section 
152 of Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment as Director of the 
Company, liable to retire by rotation. 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
 
3. Appointment of Statutory Auditors to fill casual vacancy:  

 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:  
 
“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, if any, (including 
any statutory modification(s), clarifications, exemptions or re-enactments thereof for the time being in 
force), M/s Sharp Aarth & Co. LLP (FRN No. 132748W/W100823), Chartered Accountants be and are 
hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy caused by the 
resignation of existing Statutory Auditors i.e. M/s. Jain Chhajed & Associates to hold office till the 
conclusion of the 17th Annual General Meeting of the Company and that the Board of Directors of the 
Company be and is hereby authorized to finalize the terms and conditions of their appointment, 
including remuneration of during their tenure, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (including any Committee thereof) be and is 
hereby authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper, or expedient to 
give effect to this resolution 
 

4. Appointment of Statutory Auditors:  
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:  
 
RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if 
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 , if any, read with the Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
including any statutory enactment or modification thereof and based on the recommendation of the 
Audit Committee and of the Board of Directors, M/s Sharp Aarth & Co. LLP (FRN No. 132748W/ 
W100823), who have confirmed their eligibility in terms of the provisions of Section 141 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 4 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, be and are hereby 
re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold office from the conclusion of the 17th 
Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 22nd  Annual General Meeting  and that the Board of 
Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to finalize the terms and conditions of their re-
appointment, including remuneration during their tenure, based on the recommendation of the Audit 
Committee. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (including any Committee thereof) be and is 
hereby authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper, or expedient to 
give effect to this resolution.” 
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5. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an ordinary 
resolution:  

 
“RESOLVED THAT Ms. Kajal Dubey (DIN: 09717665), who was appointed as an Additional Director 
of the Company (Non-Executive, Non Independent) with effect from October 07, 2022, by the 
Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee, and who holds office as such up to the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the 
Company under Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and in respect of whom 
the Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160(1) of the Act from a Member 
proposing her candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of 
the Company, liable to retire by rotation;  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 149, 197, and other 
applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, Ms. Kajal Dubey shall be entitled 
to receive the remuneration/ fees/ commission as permitted to be received in a capacity of Non-
Executive, Non-Independent Director under the Act and Listing Regulations, as recommended by 
the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors, from time 
to time.  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (including any Committee thereof) be and is 
hereby authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper, or 
expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 
 

6. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an ordinary 
resolution:  

 
“RESOLVED THAT Ms. Priyanka Bihani (DIN: 09738608), who was appointed as an Additional 
Director of the Company (Non-Executive, Non Independent) with effect from October 07, 2022, by 
the Board of Directors, based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee, and who holds office as such up to ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company 
under Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and in respect of whom the 
Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160(1) of the Act from a Member 
proposing her candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of 
the Company;  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 149, 197, and other 
applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, Ms. Priyanka Bihani shall be 
entitled to receive the remuneration/ fees/ commission as permitted to be received in a capacity 
of Non-Executive, Independent Director under the Act and Listing Regulations, as recommended 
by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors, from 
time to time;  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (including any Committee thereof) be and is 
hereby authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper, or 
expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 
 

7. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an ordinary 
resolution:  

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 197 and 198, read with Schedule V 
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, rules made thereunder 
and SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), and pursuant 
to the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the Board of 
Directors, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded that Ms. Jayshree 
Lakhotia (DIN: 05357609), be designated as Chairman & Executive Director of the Company with 
effect from October 07, 2022 and following remuneration to be paid to her  
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1. Salary Rs. 40,000/- per month.   
2. Other allowances, benefits and perquisites any other allowances, benefits and 

perquisites admissible to the senior officers of the Company as per Rules of the 
Company, from time to time.  

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT so long as Ms. Jayshree Lakhotia functions as the Executive 
Director of the Company, and draws the remuneration mentioned above, she will not be 
entitled to any fee for attending meetings of the Board of Directors or any Committee thereof.  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the foregoing resolutions, the 
Board of Directors (which term shall be deemed to include any Committee of the Board 
authorized in the said behalf) be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds and 
things, as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or desirable, and to settle 
any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in respect of aforesaid without being required 
to seek any further consent or approval of the Members of Company, or otherwise to the end 
and intent that they shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the 
authority of this resolution.” 

By Order of the Board of Directors  
of Lakhotia Polyesters (India) Limited 

 
 
 

Madhusudan Lakhotiya 
(Managing Director) 

DIN: 00104576 
Email id:info@lakhotiapoly.in 

Place: Nashik 
Dated: October 07, 2022 
  
Registered Office:  
158/159 Samartha Sahkari Audyogik 
Vasahat Ltd, Pimpal – Gaon (Baswant) 
Tal Niphad Dist. Nashik – 422209 

 
 
NOTES: 

1. In view of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its General 
Circular No. 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020 read with General Circular No. 14/2020 dated 8th April, 
2020, General Circular No. 17/2020 dated 13th April, 2020, General Circular No. 02/2021 dated 
13th January, 2021 and Circular No. 2/2022 dated May 05, 2022 (collectively referred to as “MCA 
Circulars”) permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through VC / OAVM, 
without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015”) and MCA Circulars, the AGM 
of the Company will be held through VC / OAVM.  

2. The relevant details, pursuant to Regulations 26(4) and 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and 
Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, 
in respect of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at this AGM are annexed.  

3. Since this AGM is being held through VC / OAVM, pursuant to MCA Circulars, physical 
attendance of the Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of 
proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM. Hence the Proxy Form, Attendance Slip 
and Route Map are not annexed to this Notice. 

4. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and Securities and Exchange Board of India 
("SEBI") Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12thMay, 2020 read with SEBI 
Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated 15thJanuary, 2021, Notice of the AGM 
along with the Annual Report is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose 
email addresses are registered with the Company / Depositories. Members may note that the 
Notice and Annual Report will also be available on the Company’s website at www.lakhotiapoly.in 

mailto:info@lakhotiapoly.in
http://www.lakhotiapoly.in/
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websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e., BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com , and on the website of 
CDSL: https://www.evotingindia.com  

5. Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning 
the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.  

6. Institutional / Corporate Shareholders (i.e., other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required 
to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing body 
Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing its representative to attend the AGM through VC 
/OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The said Resolution/Authorization shall 
be sent to the Scrutinizer by email through its registered email address to 
rmimani@csrma.in/mmimani@csrma.in with a copy marked to evoting@cdslindia.com. 

7. To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who have not yet registered their email addresses are 
requested to register the same with their DPs in case the shares are held by them in electronic 
form and with Link Intime India Private Limited in case the shares are held by them in physical 
form.  

8. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, email 
address, telephone/ mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, 
power of attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and branch details, bank account 
number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc., to their DPs in case the shares are held by them in electronic 
form and to Link Intime India Private Limited in case the shares are held by them in physical 
form.  

9. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making nomination is available for 
the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered their 
nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13. Members are 
requested to submit the said details to their DP in case the shares are held by them in electronic 
form and to Link Intime India Private Limited in case the shares are held by them in physical 
form. 

10. In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names 
as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM. 

11. Members desiring any clarification on accounts are requested to write to the Company at an early 
date through email on info@lakhotiapoly.in  so as to enable the Company to keep the information 
ready. 

12. If you have shares registered in the same name or in the same order of names but in multiple 
Folios, you are requested to send to the Company or Link Intime India Private Limited, the details 
of such folios together with the share certificates for consolidating their holdings in one folio. A 
consolidated share certificate will be issued to such Members after making requisite changes. 

13. Members may please note that SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_ 
RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated January 25, 2022 has mandated the listed companies to issue 
securities in dematerialized form only while processing service requests viz. Issue of duplicate 
securities certificate; claim from unclaimed suspense account; renewal / exchange of securities 
certificate; endorsement; sub-division / splitting of securities certificate; consolidation of securities 
certificates/folios; transmission and transposition. Accordingly, Members are requested to make 
service requests by submitting a duly filled and signed Form ISR – 4, the format of which is 
available on the Company’s website at www.lakhotiapoly.in. /Investors relation/investor 
information. 
 

1.  Instructions for e-voting and joining the AGM are as follows: 
 

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended), and 
MCA Circulars dated May 5, 2022 with reference to the General Circular Nos. 20/2020 dated 
05.05.2020, General Circular No. 02/2021 dated 13.01.2021, General Circular No.19/2021 
dated 08.12.2021 and 21/2021 dated 14.12.2021, the Company is providing facility of remote 
e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this 
purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting’s 
agency. The facility of casting votes by a Member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting 
system on the date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL. 

(b) The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in 

http://www.bseindia.com/
https://www.evotingindia.com/
mailto:rmimani@csrma.in/mmimani@csrma.in
mailto:evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:info@lakhotiapoly.in
http://www.lakhotiapoly.in/
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the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available 
to all the Members of the Company.  

(c) The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the 
purpose of ascertaining the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND E-VOTING DURING AGM AND JOINING 
MEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 
(i) The voting period begins on Wednesday, November 02, 2022 at 10.00 a.m. and ends on Friday, 

November 04, 2022 at 5.00 p.m. During this period, shareholders of the Company, holding 
shares as on the cut-off date (record date) of Friday, October 28, 2022 may cast their vote 
electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. 

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at 
the meeting venue. 

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, 
under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-
voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has 
been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail 
shareholders is at a negligible level.  

 
Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to 
listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of 
multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders.  
 
In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it 
has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login 
credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. 
Demat account holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with 
the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and 
convenience of participating in e-voting process 

 
(iv) In terms of SEBI circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 

2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile 
number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
Pursuant to aforementioned SEBI Circular, login method for e-Voting and joining virtual 
meetings for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of Shareholders Login Method 
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in Demat 
mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, 
can login through their existing user id and password. 
Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page 
without any further authentication. The URL for users 
to login to Easi/Easiest are 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit 
www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select 
New System Myeasi.  

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be 
able to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies 
where the e-Voting is in progress as per the 
information provided by the company. On clicking the 
e-Voting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting 
page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting and voting during the meeting. 
Additionally, there is also links provided to access the 
system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e., CDSL / 
NSDL / Link in Time Pvt. Ltd., so that the user can 
visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.  

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to 



10  

register is available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiR
egistration 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting 
page by providing Demat Account Number and PAN 
from an e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com 
home page or click on 
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/Evoting Login. 
The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP 
on registered mobile number and email ID as recorded 
in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, 
user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the 
e-Voting is in progress and also able to directly access 
the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL 

1. If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, 
please visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web 
browser by typing the following URL: 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-
Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” 
icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ 
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter 
your User ID and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting 
services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting 
services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. 
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 
name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service 
provider website for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period. 

2. If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, 
option to register is available at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select Register Online for 
IDeAS Portal or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectRe
g.jsp 

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser 
by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-
Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 
which is available under ‘Shareholder / Member’ 
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter 
your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account 
number hold with NSDL), Password / OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After 
successful authentication, you will be redirected to 
NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting 
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
service provider website for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period. 

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in demat 
mode) login through their 
Depository Participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your 
demat account through your Depository Participant 
registered with NSDL / CDSL for e-Voting facility. After 
successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. 
Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected 
to NSDL / CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. 
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name 
and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider’s 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
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website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period. 

 
Important note: Shareholders who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use 
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical 
issues related to login through Depository i.e., CDSL and NSDL. 
Login Type Helpdesk Details 
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in Demat 
mode with CDSL 

Shareholders facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 and 
22-23058542-43. 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in Demat 
mode with NSDL 

Shareholders facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call 
at toll free No.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 

 
Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and 
shareholders other than individual holding in Demat form: 
1. The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 
2. Click on “Shareholders” module. 
3. Now enter your User ID  

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the 

Company. 
4. Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and click on Login. 
5. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted 

on an earlier e-voting of any Company, then your existing password is to be used.  
6. If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 

 For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 
PAN Enter your 10-digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax 

Department (Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as 
physical shareholders) 
• Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the 

Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the 
sequence number which is printed on Postal Ballot / Attendance 
Slip indicated in the PAN Field. 

Dividend Bank Details 
OR Date of Birth (DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy 
format) as recorded in your demat account or in the Company 
records in order to login. 
• If both the details are not recorded with the depository or 

Company, please enter the Member id / folio number in the 
Dividend Bank details field. 

 
(v) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 
(vi) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection 

screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password 
Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the 
new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for 
voting for resolutions of any other Company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that 
Company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share 
your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password 
confidential. 

(vii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on 
the resolutions contained in this Notice. 

(viii) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote. 
(ix) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the 

option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies 
that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

http://www.evotingindia.com/
http://www.evotingindia.com/
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(x) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 
(xi) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation 

box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, 
click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

(xii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
(xiii) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the 

Voting page. 
(xiv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the 

image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the 
system. 

(xv) Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –For Remote Voting 
only. 

• Non-Individual shareholders (i.e., other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are 
required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” 
module. 

• A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be 
emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login 
and password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they 
wish to vote on. 

• The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com 
and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.  

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued 
in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the 
scrutinizer to verify the same. 

• Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board 
Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly 
authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at 
the email address viz; info@lakhotiapoly.in (designated email address by company), if they 
have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the 
scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-
VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER  
1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the 

instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting.  
2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be 

displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting.  
3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. 

However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.  
4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.  
5. Further the shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to 

avoid any disturbance during the meeting.  
6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their 
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to 
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.  

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may 
register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance at least 3 days prior to 
meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number 
at (company email id). The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have 
queries may send their queries in advance 07 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, 
demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). These 
queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email.  

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express 
their views/ ask questions during the meeting.  

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not 
casted their vote on the resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from 
doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM.  

mailto:info@lakhotiapoly.in
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10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if 
the same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then 
the votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during 
the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting 

 
PROCESSES FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHO’S EMAIL ADDRESSES/MOBILE NUMBER 
ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE DEPOSITORIES FOR OBTAINING LOGIN CREDENTIALS 
FOR E-VOTING FOR THE RESOLUTIONS PROPOSED IN THIS NOTICE:  

(i) For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of 
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email 
to Company/RTA email id. 

(ii) For Demat shareholders - please provide Demat account details (CDSL-16-digit beneficiary 
ID or NSDL-16-digit DPID + CLID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account 
statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned 
copy of Aadhar Card) +Update Email ID/Mobile Number to Company/RTA email id. 

 
In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked 
Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or 
write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 and 022-
23058542/43. 
 
All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. 
Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, 
Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 
400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call 022-23058542/43. 
 
Other Instructions: 
1. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the 

votes cast during the AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and 
make, not later than 48 hours of conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report 
of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by 
him in writing, who shall countersign the same. 

2. The result declared along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s 
website www.lakhotiapoly.in and on the website of CDSL https://www.evotingindia.com 
immediately. The Company shall simultaneously forward the results to BSE Limited, where 
the share of the Company is listed. 
 

Explanatory Statement 
The following Explanatory Statements pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 sets 
out all material facts relating to the business mentioned at resolution nos. 3 to 7 of the accompanying 
Notice of the Annual General Meeting. 
 
Item No. 3:  
The Members of the Company at their 16th AGM held on September 30, 2021 had appointed M/s Jain 
Chhajed & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 127911W) as the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of 16th AGM till the conclusion of 21st 
AGM of the Company  
 
M/s. Jain Chhajed & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No: 127911W) vide their 
letter dated August 14, 2022 have resigned from the position of Statutory Auditors of the Company, 
resulting into a casual vacancy in the office of Statutory Auditors of the Company as envisaged by 
Section 139(8) of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
Pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit Committee and of the provisions of Section 139(8) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company, at its Meeting held on October 
07,2022 have approved the appointment of  M/s. Sharp Aarth & Co. LLP (FRN No. 132748W/W100823), 
as Statutory Auditors of the Company, to fill the casual vacancy caused due to resignation of M/s 
Jain Chhajed & Associates, subject to the approval by the Members at the 17th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company.   

 

http://www.evotingindia.com/
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
http://www.lakhotiapoly.in/


14  

The Company has received the consent letter and eligibility certificate from M/s. Sharp Aarth & Co 
LLP, to act as Statutory Auditors of the Company along with a confirmation that, their appointment, 
if made, shall be within the limits prescribed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
Accordingly, consent of the Members is being sought by way an ordinary resolution as set out at item 
No. 3 of the Notice to approve the appointment of M/s. Sharp Aarth & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants 
as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the term mentioned therein.   
 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the aforesaid ordinary resolution.  
 
 
Item No. 4  
Pursuant to the recommendation of the Audit Committee, and the provisions of Section 139 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company, at its Meeting held on October 07,2022 
has recommended the appointment of M/s. Sharp Aarth & Co LLP (FRN No. 132748W/W100823) as 
Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a period of five years, i.e., from the conclusion of 
the 17th AGM, till the conclusion of the 22nd AGM of the Company.   
 
The Company has received the consent letter and eligibility certificate from M/s. Sharp Aarth & Co 
LLP, to act as Statutory Auditors of the Company along with a confirmation that, their appointment, 
if made, shall be within the limits prescribed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
Accordingly, consent of the Members is being sought by way of an ordinary resolution as set out at 
item No. 4 of the Notice to approve the appointment of M/s. Sharp Aarth & Co LLP, Chartered 
Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five years, i.e., from the conclusion 
of the 17th AGM, till the conclusion of the 22nd AGM of the Company.    
 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the aforesaid ordinary resolution.  
 
Item No. 5 
Based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC), the Board 
of Directors at its Meeting held on October 07, 2022, has appointed Ms. Kajal Dubey (DIN: 
09717665), as an Additional Director of the Company in the category of (Non-Executive, Non-
Independent), liable to retire by rotation, subject to the approval of the Members.  
 
According to the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), read with 
the provisions of regulation 17(1) (C) of SEBI (LODR), 2015, Ms. Kajal Dubey shall hold office as 
an Additional Director up to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting or a period of three 
months from the date of her appointment, whichever is earlier and is eligible to be appointed as 
a Director.  
 
The Company has, in terms of Section 160(1) of the Act, received a notice, in writing from a 
Member, proposing her candidature for the office of Director.  
 
The profile and specific areas of expertise of Ms. Kajal Dubey are provided as Annexure to this 
Notice. Ms. Kajal Dubey has given a declaration to the Board that she is not restrained from acting 
as a Director, by the Securities and Exchange Board of India or any such authority and is 
eligible to be appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act.  She has also given her 
consent to act as a Director.  
 
In the opinion of the Board, Ms. Kajal Dubey is a person of integrity, possesses the relevant 
expertise/experience, and fulfils the conditions specified in the Act and the Listing Regulations 
for appointment as a Non-Executive Director.   
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Disclosures, as required under Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial 
Standard-2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, are 
annexed to this Notice.  
 
Accordingly, consent of the Members is being sought by way of an ordinary resolution, as set out at 
item No. 5 of the Notice to approve the appointment of Ms. Kajal Dubey, as Director of the Company 
(Non-Executive, Non-Independent), liable to retire by rotation.  
 
Except, Ms. Kajay Dubey, being appointee Director, none of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
or their relatives are in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the aforesaid 
ordinary resolution. 
 
Item No. 6 
 
Based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC), the Board 
of Directors at its meeting held on October 07, 2022, appointed Ms. Priyanka Bihani (DIN: 
09738608), as an Additional Director of the Company (Non-Executive, Non-Independent), not 
liable to retire by rotation, subject to the approval of the Members.  
 
According to the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), read with 
the provisions of regulation 17(1) (C) of SEBI (LODR), 2015, Ms. Priyanka Bihani shall hold office 
as an Additional Director up to the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting or a period of three 
months from the date of her appointment, whichever is earlier and is eligible to be appointed as 
a Director. 
 
The profile and specific areas of expertise of Ms. Priyanka Bihani are provided as Annexure to this 
Notice. Ms. Priyanka Bihani given his declaration to the Board that she is not restrained from 
acting as a Director by the Securities and Exchange Board of India or any such authority and 
being eligible to be appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act.  She has also 
given her consent to act as a Director.  
 
In the opinion of the Board, Ms. Priyanka Bihani is a person of integrity, possesses the relevant 
expertise/experience, and fulfils the conditions specified in the Act and the Listing Regulations 
for appointment as a Director.  
 
Except for Ms. Priyanka Bihani and/or her relatives, no other Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel, or their respective relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise, in the said ordinary resolution.  
 
Disclosures, as required under Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial 
Standard-2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, are 
annexed to this Notice.  
 
Accordingly, consent of the Members is being sought by way of an ordinary resolution, as set out at 
item No. 6 of the Notice to approve the appointment of Ms. Priyanka Bihani, as Director of the 
Company (Non-Executive, Non-Independent), not liable to retire by rotation. 
 
Item No. 7 
 
Based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC), the Board 
of Directors at its meeting held on August 07, 2022, has designated, Ms. Jayshree Lakhotia (DIN: 
05357609), as an Executive Director of the Company with effect from October 07, 2022 subject to 
the approval of the Members.  
 
Ms. Jayshree Lakhotia has rich experience of more than 5 years in human resources and admin 
functions. Considering her vast experience and based on the recommendation of Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee and of the Board of Directors, following payment of remuneration to 
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Ms. Jayshree Lakhotia, Executive Director of the Company was proposed with effect from October 
07, 2022;     
 

1. Salary Rs. 40,000/- per month.  
2. Other allowances, benefits and perquisites admissible to the senior officers of the 

Company as per Rules of the Company, from time to time 
 
In the event of absence or inadequacy of profits of the Company in any financial year during the 
period of appointment, the Company shall pay to the Executive Director, remuneration by way of 
salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances etc. and any performance linked 
bonus/commission, as specified above, subject to provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
The entire remuneration package shall however be subject to the overall ceiling laid down under 
Sections 196 and 197 of the Act and conditions of Schedule V of the Act. 
 
In view of the provisions of Section 196, 197 and Section 203 and any other applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors recommends ordinary resolution 
as set out at Item No. 7 of the accompanying Notice for the approval of the Members. 
 
Except Ms. Jayshree Lakhotia being appointee, none of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
of the Company and their relatives are in any way concerned or interested, financial or 
otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 7. 

By Order of the Board of Directors  
of Lakhotia Polyesters (India) Limited 

 
 
 
 

Madhusudan Lakhotiya 
(Managing Director) 

DIN: 00104576 
Email id:info@lakhotiapoly.in 

Place: Nashik 
Dated: October 07, 2022  
 
Registered Office:  
158/159 Samartha Sahkari Audyogik 
Vasahat Ltd, Pimpal – Gaon (Baswant) 
Tal Niphad Dist. Nashik – 42220 

 
Annexure to Notice 

 
Details of Directors seeking appointment and re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual 
General Meeting as required under Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations and 
Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India 
Name of the Director Ms. Kajal Dubey Ms. Priyanka 

Bihani 
Mr. Ashok 
Khajanchi 

Mrs. 
Jayshree 
Lakhotia 

DIN 09717665 09738608 01532044 05357609 
Date of Birth  07/03/2002 16/06/2003 29-01-1964 03-10-1982 
Age  20 years 19 years  58 years 40 years 
Designation/Category 
of Director  

Non-Executive, 
Non-
Independent 
Director 

Non-Executive, 
Non-
Independent 
Director 

Executive Director  Executive 
Director 

Date of the first 
appointment on the 

 October 07, 
2022   

October 
07,2022   

August 17, 2016 July 24, 
2012 

mailto:info@lakhotiapoly.in
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Board 
Qualification MBA SY B.Com.  Law Graduate  B.Com 
Brief Profile, 
Experience, and 
Expertise in specific 
functional areas 

Ms. Kajal 
Dubey is 
associated 
with a CA firm 
and having 
experience in 
Audit and 
Finance 
functions.  

Ms. Priyanka 
Bihani is 
studying and 
having interest 
in Business 
Management  
 

Day to day 
Management of a 
business 
organization  

Day to day 
Management 
of a 
business 
organization 

Directorships held in 
other companies 
including listed 
companies and 
excluding foreign 
companies as of the 
date of this Notice 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Name of listed 
entities from which 
the person has 
resigned in the past 
three years 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Memberships / 
Chairmanships of 
committees of other 
companies including 
listed companies and 
excluding foreign 
companies as of the 
date of this Notice 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Relationship with 
other Directors, 
Managers, and other 
Key Managerial 
Personnel of the 
Company 

Nil Nil  Nil Wife of 
Madhusudhan 
Lakhotia, 
Managing 
Director 

Shareholding in the 
Company including 
shareholding as a 
beneficial owner 

Nil  Nil Nil  1,55,064 

Terms and 
Conditions of 
appointment / 
reappointment 

Non-Executive 
Director, liable 
to retire by 
rotation  

Non-Executive 
Director, not 
liable to retire 
by rotation 

Director, liable to 
retire by rotation 

Director, 
liable to 
retire by 
rotation 

Details of 
Remuneration sought 
to be paid 

As stated in 
resolution, 
above 

As stated in 
resolution, 
above 

As stated in 
resolution, above 

As stated in 
resolution, 
above 

In the case of 
independent 
directors, the skills 
and capabilities 
required for the role 
and the manner in 
which the proposed 
person meets such 
requirements 

Not applicable Not applicable  Not applicable Not 
applicable 
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BOARD REPORT  

 
To, 
The Members, 
Lakhotia Polyesters (India) Limited 
 
Your directors are pleased to present the 17th Annual Report on the business and operations of 
the Company and the accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022. 
 

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS / PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY 
The Board’s Report shall be prepared based on the standalone financial statements of the 
Company. 

(Rs. in Lakhs) 
Particulars FINANCIAL YEAR 

2021-22 2020-21 
Total Income 2090.52 1634.22 
Less: Expenditure  2073.12 1637.71 
Profit Before Finance Cost, Depreciation & Tax 17.40 (3.49) 
Less: Finance Cost 53.59 32.65 
Less: Depreciation 12.49 14.44 
Net Profit/(Loss) Before Tax & Extraordinary Item (48.67) (50.58) 
Less: Extraordinary Item - - 
Less: Tax Expense (2.26) (2.27) 
Net Profit/(Loss) After Tax (46.41) (48.31) 
 

2. RESULTS OF OPERATIONS & STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS   
The Company continues to have a clear price and product leadership in its segment. During 
second quarter of FY 2021-22, your Company resumed manufacturing operation at its Plant at 
Nasik in a gradual manner under the guidelines of central government and state authorities.  
 
In this context, your Company delivered an overall revenue of Rs. 2090.52 Lakhs in Financial 
year 2021-22 as against Rs. 1634.22 lakhs in the Financial Year 2020-21. There is reduction in 
loss as compared to previous year and your Company has incurred the losses of Rs. 46.41 Lakhs 
during the year under review as against Rs. 48.31 Lakhs in Financial Year 2020-21. The year 
was marked by gradual improvement in capacity utilization and volume recovery after the plunge 
in April 2020.  
 

3. DIVIDENDS AND RESERVES 
In view of the losses incurred, no dividend was recommended for the financial year ended on 
March 31, 2022.  
 

4. SHARE CAPITAL 
The authorised share capital of the Company is Rs. 10,50,00,000 (Rupees Ten Crores and Fifty 
Lakhs only) comprising 1,05,00,000 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each. 
 
The paid-up equity share capital as at March 31, 2022 stood at Rs.10,47,39,880/- (Rupees Ten 
Crores Forty-Seven Lacs Thirty-Nine Thousand and Eight Hundred and Eighty Only). 
 
There is no change in the share capital of the Company during the financial year ended on 
March 31, 2022.  
 
The Company has not issued any equity shares with or without differential rights during the year 
under review and hence no information as per provisions of Rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share 
Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished. 
 
The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review and hence 
no information as per provisions of Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) 
Rules, 2014 is furnished. 
 
There are no shares held by trustees for the benefit of employees and hence no disclosure under 
Rule 16(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 has been furnished 
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5. TRANSFER TO RESERVES 

No amount has been transferred by the Company to Reserves during the year. 
 

6. PUBLIC DEPOSITS 
The Company has neither invited nor accepted any public deposits during the period under 
review. No such deposits were outstanding at the beginning or end of the financial year. 
 

7. SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
As on March 31, 2022, Company does not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture 
company. 
  

8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
The Company is not required to consolidate its financial statements in terms of provisions of 
Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereunder. 
 

9. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
In compliance with Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations, a separate report on Corporate 
Governance along with a certificate from the Secretarial Auditors on its compliance, forms an 
integral part of this Report. 
 

10. ANNUAL RETURN  
Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return for the 
financial year ended on March 31, 2022 is available on the website of the Company at 
www.lakhotiapoly.in under Investor Information tab. 
 

11. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of its knowledge and 
ability, confirm that: 
a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been 

followed and there are no material departures; 
b) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the loss of the 
Company for that period; 

c) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 
e) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such 

internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; 
f) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 

laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 
 

12. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
a) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Act, the independent directors have 

submitted declarations that each of them meets the criteria of independence as provided in 
Section 149(6) of the Act along with Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the 
SEBI Listing Regulations. There has been no change in the circumstances affecting their 
status as independent directors of the Company.  As on March 31, 2022, Mr. Sri Gopal 
Mundra and Mr. Vashishtha Mohan Pandiya are Independent Directors of the Company. 
Based on the confirmations received from Directors, none of the Directors are disqualified 
from appointment under Section 164 of the Companies Act 2013. 

b) The policy on Director’s appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining 
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Director, and also remuneration for Key 
Managerial Personnel and other employees, forms part of the Corporate Governance Report 
of this Annual Report. 

c) Mr. Ashokkumar G. Khajanchi retires by rotation at the ensuing 17th Annual General 
Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. A resolution seeking 
shareholders’ approval for his re-appointment forms part of the Notice of the 17th Annual 
General Meeting.  

d) During the year under review, the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary 
relationship or transactions with the Company, other than sitting fees, commission, if any 

http://www.lakhotiapoly.in/
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and reimbursement of expenses incurred by them for the purpose of attending meetings of 
the Board / Committee of the Company. 

 
13. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Five (5) meetings of the Board were held during the year under review and gap between two 
meetings was not more than 120 days. For details of meetings of the Board, please refer to the 
Corporate Governance Report, which is a part of this report.  
 

14. COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
Details of composition of various committees of the Board of Directors of the Company are being 
made available in Corporate Governance Report forming the part of this Board Report,  
 

15. BOARD EVALUATION, INDUCTION AND TRAINING OF BOARD MEMBERS 
 Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Independent Directors have carried out 

an annual performance evaluation of the Directors individually as well as evaluation of the 
working of the Board and its Committees, culture, execution and performance of specific duties, 
obligations and governance. 

 
 The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was completed. The Board of Directors 

expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 
 

 In the opinion of Board, the Independent Directors possess the requisite expertise and experience 
and are the persons of high integrity and repute 

 
 The process followed by the Company for induction and training to Board Members has been 

explained in the Corporate Governance Report. 
 
16. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS BY THE COMPANY 
      Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (if any) are given in the notes to the Financial Statements 
 
17. WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

The Company has a whistle blower policy to report genuine concerns or grievances. The Whistle 
Blower policy has been posted on the website of the Company. (www.lakhotiapoly.in) 
 

18. REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION POLICY 
 The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down a framework in relation to 

remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the Company. 
This policy also lays down criteria for selection and appointment of Board Members. The 
remuneration and nomination policy has been posted on the website of the Company 
(www.lakhotiapoly.in) 
 

19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
The Company has developed a related party transactions framework through standard operating 
procedures for the purpose of identification and monitoring of transactions with the related 
parties. 

 
 The policy on related party transactions as approved by the Board of Directors has been 

uploaded on the website of the Company. None of the Directors has any pecuniary relationship 
or transactions vis-a-vis the Company. 

 
The Company has not entered into any material related party transactions, which needs given in 
form AOC-2 in terms of the provision of section 188(1) including certain arm’s length 
transactions.  
 

20. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS  
There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts that would impact 
the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 
 

21. STATUTORY AUDITORS 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, M/s Jain Chhajed & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm 

http://www.lakhotiapoly.in/
http://www.lakhotiapoly.in/
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Registration No. 127911W) was appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold 
office from the conclusion of 16th   AGM till the conclusion of 21st AGM of the Company. 
 
The Auditors’ Report is unmodified i.e., it does not contain any qualification, reservation or 
adverse remark 
 

22. DETAILS OF FRAUD REPORTED BY AUDITOR 
 There were no frauds reported by the Statutory Auditors under provisions of Section 143(12) of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder 
 
23. COST AUDIT AND COST RECORDS 
 Provision of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and 

Audit) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company during the financial year under review.  
 
24. SECRETARIAL AUDIT 
 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made 

thereunder, the Company has appointed R M Mimani & Associates LLP, Company Secretaries to 
undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed 
herewith as “Annexure – 2” and forms an integral part of this report.  

 
 The qualification, reservation or remark are self-explanatory and not required any further 

comments or response.  
 
25. COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 
 During the year under review, the Company has complied with the applicable SS-1 (Secretarial 

Standard on Meetings of the Board of Directors) and SS-2 (Secretarial Standard on General 
Meetings) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central 
Government under Section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

   
26. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONROL AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
 Your Company has an effective internal control and risk-mitigation system, which are constantly 

assessed and strengthened with new/revised standard operating procedures. The Company’s 
internal control system is commensurate with its size, scale and complexities of its operations. 
The main thrust of internal audit is to test and review controls, appraisal of risks and business 
processes, besides benchmarking controls with best practices in the industry. The Audit 
Committee of the Board of Directors actively reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
internal control systems and suggests improvements to strengthen the same. The Company has 
a robust Management Information System, which is an integral part of the control mechanism. 
The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, Statutory Auditors and the Business Heads are 
periodically apprised of the internal audit findings and corrective actions taken. Audit plays a 
key role in providing assurance to the Board of Directors. Significant audit observations and 
corrective actions taken by the management are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board. 
To maintain its objectivity and independence, the Internal Audit function reports to the 
Chairman of the Audit Committee. 

 
27. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 Your Company has a Risk Management Policy adopted by the Board. Periodical in-house risk 

audits were conducted to detect and mitigate the risks in a timely and effective manner.  
 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report contain more details on the risk management 
practiced by the Company. 

  
 During the financial year under review, the Company has identified and evaluates elements of 

business risk. Consequently, a Business Risk Management framework is in place. The risk 
management framework defines the risk management approach of the Company and includes 
periodic review of such risks and also documentation, mitigating controls and reporting 
mechanism of such risks. The framework has different risk models which help in identifying 
risks trend, exposure and potential impact analysis at a Company level as also separately for 
business. 
 

28. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY  
The Company has in place a Prevention of Sexual Harassment policy in line with the 
requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
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Redressal) Act, 2013. An Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints 
received regarding sexual harassment.  
 
All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.  
 
During the year 2021-2022, no complaints were received by the Company related to Sexual 
Harassment. 

 
29. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 
 Provision of Section 135 and Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies 

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company during the 
year under review.  

 
30. ENVIRONMENT AND SAFETY 

Your Company is committed to ensure sound Safety, Health and Environmental (SHE) 
performance related to its activities, products and services. Your Company is taking continuous 
steps to develop Safer Process Technologies and Unit Operations and has been investing heavily 
in areas such as Process Automation for increased safety and reduction of human error element. 
Enhanced level of training on Process and Behavior based safety, adoption of safe & 
environmental friendly production process, Management System is done on a continuous basis.  
 

 The Company is committed to continuously take further steps to provide a safe and healthy 
environment. 

 
31. STATUTORY INFORMATION 

 The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange 
earnings and outgo pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 
the Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company 
during the financial year under review.  

 The information required under section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1), 
(2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 in respect of employees of the Company are given in Annexure – 4 & 5 to this Report. 

 The Business Responsibility Reporting as required under SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 is 
not applicable to your Company for the financial year under review.  

 Disclosure as required under para-F of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, are not applicable to the Company during the 
financial year. 
 

32. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review as stipulated under SEBI 
(LODR), Regulations, 2015 is presented in a separate section forming part of this Annual Report 
for the financial year ended March 31, 2022. 
 

33. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 
Statements in this Report, Management Discussion and Analysis, Corporate Governance, notice 
to the Shareholders or elsewhere in this Annual Report, describing the Company’s objectives, 
projections, estimates and expectations may constitute ‘forward looking statement’ within the 
meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results might differ materially from those 
either expressed or implied in the statement depending on the Market conditions and 
circumstances. 
 

34. DISCLOSURES UNDER SECTION 134(3)(i) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 
Except as disclosed elsewhere in this report, no material changes and commitments which could 
affect the Company’s financial position have occurred between the end of the financial year of the 
Company and date of this report. 
 

35. STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SEBI LISTING REGULATIONS 
The Company’s shares are listed with BSE Ltd. Your Company has paid the respective annual 
listing fees and there are no arrears. 
 

36. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND APPRECIATION 
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Your directors express their sincere gratitude for the assistance and co-operation extended by 
Banks, Government Authorities, Shareholders, Suppliers and Customers. Your directors also 
wish to place on record their appreciation of the contribution made by the employees at their 
levels towards achievements of the Company’s goals. 

 
 

      By Order of the Board of Directors 
of Lakhotia Polyesters (India) Limited 

 
 
 

Jayshree Lakhotia                  Madhusudan Lakhotiya 
                Director                     Managing Director 

                                               DIN: 05357609                               DIN:00104576 
 

Place: Nashik 
Dated: August 05, 2022  
 
Registered Office:  
158/159 Samartha Sahkariaudyogik 
Vasahat Ltd, Pimpal – Gaon (Baswant) 
Tal Niphad Dist. Nashik – 422209 
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Annexure 1 

 
Form No. MR-3 

Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 
 
The Members   
Lakhotia Polyesters (India) Limited 
[CIN: L17120MH2005PLC155146] 
158/159 Samartha Sahkariaudyogik 
Vasahat Ltd Pimpal- Gaon (Baswant)  
Tal Niphad Dist. Nashik-422209 
 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Lakhotia Polyesters (India) Limited 
hereinafter called (“the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances 
and expressing our opinion thereon.  
 
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company, the information provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of secretarial 
audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations made by the 
Management. 
 
We hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the 
financial year ended on March 31, 2022 generally complied with the statutory provisions 
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 according 
to the provisions of: 

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made there-under; 
 

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made there-
under; 
 

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and bye-laws framed there-under; 
 

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there-
under to the extent applicable. 

 
5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable to the 
Company;  

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015; 

 
6. The Management has Identified and confirmed the following laws as specifically 

applicable to the Company; 
a. Water (Prevention and control of Pollution) Act, 1981 
b. Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution), Act, 1974.  

 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following; 

(a) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India related 
to the meetings of Board of Directors and Shareholders; 
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(b) The SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015  

 
We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems and 
mechanism formed by the Company and test verification on random basis carried out for 
compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations to the Company 
 
The compliance by the Company of the applicable direct tax laws, indirect tax laws and other 
financial laws has not been reviewed in this Audit, since the same have been subject to review 
by the other designated professionals and being relied on the reports given by such designated 
professionals. 
 
During the audit period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the 
Act, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc. as mentioned above. 
 
During the audit period under review, provisions of the following regulations were not 
applicable to the Company;  

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 
2009;  
 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 
2018; 
 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Debt Securities) Regulations, 
2008 (till August 15, 2021) 
 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and 
Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations,2013; (till August 15, 2021) 
 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 
Securities) Regulations, 2021 (with effect from August 16, 2021); 
 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 
Regulations, 2014(till August 12, 2021) and Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021,  
 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018, and  
 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations, 1993 dealing with client 

 
We further report that: 

• The Board of Directors of the Company is not duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There was no 
change in in the composition of the Board of Directors during the period under review.  

• Adequate notice is given to all the Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda 
and detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance there was no formal system exists 
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 
before the meeting for meaningful participation at the Meeting. 

• Decisions at the meetings of Board of Directors of the Company and Committee 
thereof were carried out with requisite majority. 

 
We further report that based on the information provided and representation made by the 
Company and also on the review of compliance reports of the respective department duly 
signed by the department head and Compliance Certificate(s) of the Managing 
Director/Company Secretary/CFO taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, 
in our opinion  system and process exists in the company required to be strengthen to 
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with the applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.  
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We further report that during the audit period the Company no events occurred which had 
bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, 
guidelines, standards etc. 
 
For R M Mimani & Associates LLP 
[Company Secretaries]  
[Firm Registration No. L2015MH008300] 
 
 
Ranjana Mimani 
(Partner) 
FCS  :  6271 
CP No.:  4234 
PR No.: 1065/2021 
UDIN: F006271D000752302 
 
Place: Mumbai          
Dated: August 05, 2022 
    
Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as 
“Annexure A” and forms an integral part of this report. 
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Annexure – “A” 

The Members   
Lakhotia Polyesters (India) Limited 
Nashik-422209 
 
Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter; 
 
1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based 
on our audit; 

2. We have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The 
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial 
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinion; 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the Company; 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules and regulation and happening of events etc.; 

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited 
to the verification of procedure on test basis; 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the Company. 

 
For R M Mimani & Associates LLP 
[Company Secretaries]  
[Firm Registration No. L2015MH008300] 
 
 
Ranjana Mimani 
(Partner) 
FCS  :  6271 
CP No.:  4234 
PR No.: 1065/2021 
UDIN: F006271D000752302 
 
Place: Mumbai          
Dated: August 05, 2022 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 
The Members   
Lakhotia Polyesters (India) Limited 
[CIN: L17120MH2005PLC155146] 
158/159 Samartha Sahkariaudyogik 
Vasahat Ltd Pimpal- Gaon (Baswant)  
Tal Niphad Dist. Nashik-422209 
 
We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from 
the Directors of Lakhotia Polyesters (India) Limited (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), 
produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance 
with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including 
Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered 
necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company and its officers, we hereby certify 
that the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 
March 31, 2022 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 
Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority;  

DID 
DIN DD 

 
Name of the Board Member 

 
Designation 

Date of 
Appointment 

00104576 Mr. Madhusudan Shamsundar Lakhotiya Managing Director 03/09/2015 

01532044 Mr. Ashokkumar Gulabchand Khajanchi Executive Director 17/08/2016 
05357609 Ms. Jayshree Madhusudhan Lakhotia Non-Executive 

Director 
24/07/2012 

08475997 Mr. Vashishtha Mohan Pandiya Independent 
Director 

31/05/2019 

 
Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these based on our verification. 
 
For R M Mimani & Associates LLP 
[Company Secretaries]  
[Firm Registration No. L2015MH008300] 
 
 
 
 
Ranjana Mimani 
(Partner) 
FCS  :  6271 
CP No.:  4234 
PR No.: 1065/2021 
 
UDIN: F006271D000752291 

Place: Mumbai          
Dated: August 05, 2022 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
This Report covers the operations and financial performance of the Company for the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2022 and forms part of the Annual Report. 
 
Overview of the Economy: 
The company specializes in lacquered metallised Polyesters film which finds application primarily 
in the textile and apparel industry. The grade of coated Polyesters film produced is used 
extensively in the manufacture of metallic yarns.  
 
The process of metalizing Polyesters or polymer films leads to a product that is glossy and shiny 
in its appearance. The process of metalizing involves the layering or coating of polymers with 
aluminium. The result is a reflective surface which reduces the vulnerability of the material to 
sunlight, moisture and air. Polyesters coated films are available in different grades and 
specifications and find use across a varied number of industries from flexible packaging, shrink 
labels, cable insulation, and magnetic media to textiles and decorations. 
 
Industry, Structure & Developments:  
In the early days metallic yarns were limited to silver and gold variants. However, today every 
conceivable shade of colour is reproducible. The ability to read market trends and cater to 
unique shades, differentiates one company from another and determines the demand pull for 
metallic yarns. While the industry is fairly organized, there exist a large number of players within 
the metallic yarn segment. There are few companies that specialize solely in catering to the 
metallic yarn segment, with most players producing a large array of metallised Polyesters films 
which cater primarily to the needs of the flexible packaging industry. 
 
Operational Performance 
During the current period of operation, your company have loss of Rs. 46.41 Lacs as against Rs. 
48.31 lacs. 
 
Risk and Concerns 
The largest component of costs involved in making flexible packaging film is attributable to raw 
materials.  
 
Given the volatile trend in Polyesters and demand for Polyesters for competing applications the 
pressure on input costs can be expected to fluctuate.  
 
Adequacy of Internal Control System 
The Company has adequate internal control systems for the business processes in respect of all 
operations, financial reporting, compliance with laws and regulations etc. The management 
information system forms an effective and sound tool for monitoring and controlling all operating 
parameters. Regular internal audits ensure that responsibilities are executed effectively. The 
Audit Committee reviews the adequacy of internal controls on regular basis. 
 
Human Resource Development 
The Company recognizes that its human resource is its strength in realizing its goals and 
objectives. 
 
Cautionary Statement 
The Statement in this Management Discussion and Analysis report, describing the Company’s 
outlook, projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be “Forward looking Statements” 
within the meaning of applicable securities laws or regulations. Actual results could differ 
materially from those expressed or implied. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
of Lakhotia Polyesters (India) Limited 

 
 

Jayshree Lakhotia             Madhusudan Lakhotiya 
Director                     Managing Director 

      DIN: 05357609                           DIN: 00104576 
 
 

Place: Nashik 
Dated: August 05, 2022 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
 
Corporate Governance 
The Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the financial year 
ended March 31, 2022, in terms of Regulations 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”). 
 
1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE 
Effective corporate governance practices constitute the strong foundation on which successful 
enterprises are built to last. The Company’s philosophy on corporate governance oversees 
business strategies and ensures fiscal accountability, ethical corporate behaviour and fairness to 
all stakeholders comprising regulators, employees, customers, vendors, investors and the society 
at large. 
 
Transparency and accountability are the two basic tenets of Corporate Governance. The 
Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is to achieve business excellence, enhance long 
term values for its stakeholders, maintaining excellent relations across all levels and proper 
compliance with all applicable legal and regulatory requirements. Responsible corporate conduct 
is integral to the way we do our business. We believe that Corporate Governance is a journey for 
constantly improving sustainable value creation and is an upward moving target. In its 
endeavour to achieve the higher standards of governance by adopting the best emerging 
practices, the Company not only adheres to the prescribed corporate governance practices in 
terms of the regulatory requirements but is also committed to sound corporate governance 
principles and practices. To succeed, we believe, requires highest standards of corporate 
behaviour towards everyone we work with, the communities we touch and the environment on 
which we have an impact. 
 
The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including the Managing Director 
and the Executive Directors. In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its 
non-executive directors which includes Code of Conduct for Independent Directors which 
suitably incorporates the duties of Independent Directors as laid down in the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”). 
 
The Company is in compliance with the requirements stipulated under Regulation 17 to 27 read 
with Schedule V and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(“SEBI Listing Regulations”), as applicable, with regard to corporate governance. 
 
Details of board structure and the various committees that constitute the governance structure 
of the organization are covered in detail in this report. 
 
2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
The Board of Directors (‘the Board’) is responsible for and committed to sound principles of 
Corporate Governance in the Company. The Board plays a crucial role in overseeing how the 
management serves the short term and long-term interests of shareholders and other 
stakeholders. This belief is reflected in our governance practices, under which we strive to 
maintain an effective, informed and independent Board. 
 
The Board of Directors is entrusted with the ultimate responsibility of the management, general 
affairs, direction and performance of the Company and has been vested with requisite powers, 
authorities and duties. 
 
Composition 
The Board of Directors along with its committees provide leadership and guidance to the 
Company’s management and direct, supervises and controls the performance of the Company. 
The strength of Board of Directors is 5 (Five) as on March 31, 2022, whose composition and 
category are given below: 
Two      -       Executive Directors 
Two       -      Independent Directors 
One  -      Non-Executive Director  
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The composition of the Board also complies with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The composition of the Board represents an optimal mix of 
professionalism, knowledge and experience and enables the Board to discharge its 
responsibilities and provide effective leadership to the business. 
 
A. The Constitution of the Board as on March 31, 2022  
The Composition of the Board of Directors and also the number of other Board of Directors or 
Board Committees of which they are Member/ Chairman are given below: 

Sr. 
No. Directors Category 

Date of 
joining 
the Board/ 
Reappoint
ment 

Direct
orship 
in 
Other 
Comp
anies 

No. of Other 
Committee 
positions held 
in other 
companies 

No. of 
Committee 
positions 
held in 
Lakhotia 
Polyesters 
India 
Limited as 
on the date 

Member 
Chai
rma
n 

Mem
ber 

Chair
man 

1 
Mr. 
Madhusudan 
Lakhotiya  

Managing 
Director 01.04.2019 0 0 0 1 0 

2 Ms. Jayshree 
Lakhotia  

Non- 
Executive 
Director 

30.09.2021 0 0 0 2 0 

3 
Mr. Ashok 
Kumar 
Khajanchi 

Executive 
Director 25.09.2020 0 0 0 0 0 

4 Mr. Sri Gopal 
Mundra 

Independent 
Director 
 

29.09.2019 0 0 0 3 3 

5 Mr. Vashishtha 
Mohan Pandiya 

Independent 
Director 
 

29.09.2019 0 0 0 3 0 

# Excluding Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies, Section 8 Companies and Alternate 
Directorships. 
 
None of the Directors hold directorship in more than 20 Public Limited Companies nor is a 
Member in more than ten committees or acts as chairman of more than 5 committees across all 
the companies in which they are Directors. 
 
B. Appointment and Tenure 
The Directors of the Company are appointed by Members at the General Meetings. The 
Managing Director of the Company is appointed for a term of five years as per the 
requirement of the statute. The Executive Directors on the Board have been appointed as per 
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and serve in accordance with the terms of their 
contract of service with the Company. 
 
As regards the appointment and tenure of Independent Directors, following is the policy 
adopted by the Board: 
• The Company has adopted the provisions with respect to appointment and tenure of 

Independent Directors which are consistent with the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing 
Regulations. 

• The Company would not have any upper age limit of retirement of Independent Directors 
from the Board and their appointment and tenure will be governed by provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations. 

  
C. Board Meetings 
The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company / business policy 
and strategy apart from other Board business. The notice of Board meeting is given well in 
advance to all the Directors. Meetings of the Board are held at Nashik. The Agenda of the 
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Board / Committee meetings is set by the Managing Director of the Company. The Agenda is 
circulated a week prior to the date of the meeting. The Agenda for the Board and Committee 
meetings cover items set out as per the guidelines in Listing Regulations to the extent it is 
relevant and applicable. The Agenda for the Board and Committee meetings include detailed 
notes on the items to be discussed at the meeting to enable the Directors to take an informed 
decision. 
 
During the Financial Year 2021-22, the Board of Directors of the Company met Five times on 12-
06-2021, 12-08-2021, 06-09-2021, 02-11-2021, and 03-02-2022.  
 
Attendance of Each Director at the Board Meetings and the Last Annual General Meeting: 

Sr. 
No. Name of the Directors Category of 

Directorship 

No. of 
Board 
Meeting 
Attended 

Attendance 
at the Last 
AGM held on  

1 Mr. Madhusudan Lakhotiya  Managing Director 5 Present 
2 Ms. Jayshree Lakhotia  Non-Executive Director 5 Present 

3 Mr. Ashok Kumar Khajanchi Executive Director 5 Absent  

4 Mr. Sri Gopal Mundra Independent Director 5 Present 

5 Mr. Vashishtha Mohan 
Pandiya 

Independent Director 
 5 Present  

 
D. Board Procedure 
The Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant rules made there under, now facilitates the 
participation of a Director in Board / Committee Meetings through video conferencing or other 
audiovisual mode. Accordingly, the option to participate in the Meeting through video 
conferencing was made available for the Directors except in respect of such Meetings/Items 
which are not permitted to be transacted through video conferencing. 
 
E.  Board Training and Familiarisation Program 
At the time of appointing a director, a formal letter of appointment is given. The Directors are 
familiarised with the History, Vision and Mission of the Company and also explained in detail the 
compliances required from them under Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015 and other relevant regulations. The Managing Director also has a one-to-one discussion 
with the newly appointed Director. The above initiative helps the Director to understand the 
Company, its business and the regulatory framework in which the Company operates and equips 
them to effectively fulfil his role as a Director of the Company. 
 
3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
The Board Committees play a crucial role in the governance structure of the Company and have 
been constituted to deal with specific areas / activities which concern the Company and need a 
closer review. The Board Committees are set up under the formal approval of the Board to carry 
out clearly defined roles which are considered to be performed by Members of the Board, as a 
part of good governance practice. The Board supervises the execution of its responsibilities by 
the Committees and is responsible for their action. The Chairman of the respective Committee 
informs the Board about the summary of the discussions held in the Committee Meetings. The 
minutes of the meetings of all Committees are placed before the Board for review. The Board 
Committees can request special invitees to join the meeting, as appropriate. 
 
The Board has established the following statutory and non-statutory Committees. 
 
a. Audit Committee 
The composition, quorum, powers, role and scope are in accordance with Section 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the provisions of Regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The 
Audit Committee of the Company acts as a supervisor to the accounting system of the Company 
which it reports to the Board of Directors of the Company. Members of the committee at present 
are: 
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Name of 
Directors Designation Nature of 

Directorship 

Total Meetings 
Held during the 

Year 

Meetings 
Attended by 
the Member 

Mr. Sri Gopal 
Mundra 

Chairman Independent Director 5 5 

Mr. Vashishtha 
Mohan Pandiya 

Member Independent Director 5 5 

Mr. Madhusudan 
Lakhotiya 

Member Managing Director 5 5 

 
During the Financial Year 2021-22, Audit Committee met 5 (Five) times on 12.06.2021, 12-08-
2021, 06-09-2021, 02-11-2021, and 03-02-2022. 
 
Terms of reference of the audit committee are broadly defined as under: 
The composition, quorum, powers, role and scope are in accordance with Section 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the provisions of Regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 
 
b. Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
 
As per Section 178 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, Our Company has constituted a Nomination 
& Remuneration Committee. The Members of the said committee as on March 31, 2022 are: 

Name of Directors 
Designation 
in 
Committee 

Nature of 
Directorship 

Total 
Meetings 
Held during 
the Year 

Meetings 
Attended 
by the 
Member 

Mr. Sri Gopal Mundra Chairman Independent Director 2 2 
Ms. Jayshree Lakhotia Member Non- Executive 

Director 
2 2 

Mr. Vashishtha Pandiya Member Independent, Non-
executive 

2 2 

 
Terms of reference of the Nomination & Remuneration Committees are broadly defined as 
under: 
The Committee’s terms of referencepowers, role and functions are as stipulated under Section 
178 of Companies Act, 2013. 
 
The Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the Listing Regulation, which are as followed: 

• To guide the Board and lay down criteria in relation to appointment and removal of 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management. 

• To evaluate the performance of the Members of the Board and provide necessary report to 
the Board for further evaluation of the Board.  

• To recommend to the Board on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and Senior Management 

• To provide to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management reward linked directly to 
their effort, performance, dedication and achievement relating to the Company’s operations 

• To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented 
 managerial persons and create competitive advantage.  

• To devise a policy on Board diversity 
• To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan. 

 
During the year ended 31st March, 2022, 2 (Two) Nomination & Remuneration Committee 
Meeting was held on 12.06.2021 and 06-09-2021  
 
c. Stakeholders Relationship Committee – 
 
As Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) have come into force w.e.f. April 01, 2014 pursuant to Section 
178 of the Act, your Company has re-constituted Shareholders / Investors Grievances & Share 
Transfer Committee to “Stakeholders Relationship Committee”. 
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Ms. Shannu Chaturvedi, Company Secretary is designated as Compliance Officer of the 
Company.  
  
The Members of the committee as on March 31, 2022 are: 
 
Name of Director Designation in Committee Nature of Directorship 
Mr. Sri Gopal Mundra Chairman Independent Director 
Ms. Jayshree Lakhotia Member Non-Executive Director 
Mr. Vashishtha Pandiya Member Independent Director 

 
Terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee are broadly defined as 
under: 
 
To resolve the complaints and grievances of the investors/stakeholders and to function in an 
efficient manner that all issues / concerns of stakeholders are addressed / resolved promptly. 
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee met 5 times during the financial year ended 
31.03.2022 on 12.06.2021, 12.08.2021, 02.11.2021, and 03-02-2022. 
 
Details of Shareholders’ / Investors’ Complaints during the FY ended 31st March 2022.  

 
d. Risk Management Committee 
Forming Risk Management Committee is not applicable to our Company. 
 
e. Policy on material subsidiary 
Company does not have a material subsidiary and hence the Company is not required to 
formulate policy on material subsidiary 
 
f. Policy on Related party transactions 
The Company has not entered into any material Related Party Transaction during the year. In 
line with requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations. The details of the 
policy have been disclosed on company’s website www.lakhotiapoly.in . The Policy intends to 
ensure that proper reporting, approval and disclosure processes are in place for all transactions 
between the Company and Related Parties.  
This policy specifically deals with the review and approval of Material Related Party Transactions 
keeping in mind the potential or actual conflicts of interest that may arise because of entering 
into these transactions. All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for 
review and approval. Prior omnibus approval is obtained for Related Party Transactions on a 
quarterly basis for transactions which are of repetitive nature and / or entered in the ordinary 
course of business and are at Arm’s Length.  
All Related Party Transactions entered during the year were in Ordinary Course of the business 
and on Arm’s Length basis. No Material Related Party Transactions, i.e. transactions exceeding 
ten percent of the annual consolidated turnover as per the last audited financial statements, 
were entered during the year by your Company. 
 
g. Independent Directors’ Meeting 
During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on February 03,2022 inter alia, to 
discuss and review: 
• Evaluation of the performance of Non-independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a 

whole. 
• Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the 

Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably 
perform its duties. 

 
Policy on Disclosure and Internal procedure for prevention of Insider Trading 
Ms. Shannu Chaturvedi, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer is responsible for setting forth 
policies, procedures, monitoring and adherence to the rules for the preservation of price sensitive 

Number of Shareholders’ Complaints  at the beginning of the year Nil  
Number of Shareholders’ Complaints  received during the year.  Nil 
Number of Shareholders’ Complaints resolved during the year Nil 
Number of Shareholders’ Complaints Pending at the end of the year Nil 

http://www.lakhotiapoly.in/
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information and the implementation of the code of conduct under the overall supervision of the 
Board. 
 
SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 

 
• GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 
 
The details of date, time and location of annual general meetings held in the last three years are 
as under: 

Year Date of AGM Day Time Venue 

2020-21 30.09.2021 Thursday 3.00 
P.M. 

through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other 
Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) 

2019-20 25.09.2020 Friday 3.00 
P.M. 

Through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other 
Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) 

2018-19 29.09.2019 Sunday 10.00 
AM 

158/159 Samaratha Sahkari Audyogik 
Vasahat Ltd., Pimpal- Gaon (Baswant),  
Tal- Niphad, Nashik – 422209  

 
• Postal Ballot 

No Meeting was held through postal ballot during the year under review. 
 
• Annual General Meeting for the financial year 2021-22 

Date Saturday, November 05, 2022  
Venue The Company is conducting meeting through VC / OAVM as such there 

is no requirement to have a venue for the AGM 
Time 2.30 P.M. 
 

• Calendar of financial year ended 31st March 2023 
The tentative dates for Board Meetings for consideration of quarterly financial results are as 
follows: 

First Quarter By 14th August, 2022 
Second Quarter By 14th November, 2022 
Third Quarter By 14th February, 2022 
Fourth Quarter By 29th May, 2023  

 
• Bifurcation of shares held in physical and demat form as on 31st March 2022 
Particulars No. of Shares % 
Physical Shares 0 0 
Demat Shares   
NSDL (A) 30,123 0.29 
CDSL (B) 10,443,865 99.71 
TOTAL (A+B) 10,473,988 100.00 
 
• Listing Details 
Name and Address of Stock Exchange Stock Code 
BSE Limited  
Floor 25, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,  
Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400 001 

535387 

ISIN INE191O01010 
The listing fee for the financial year 2021-22 has been paid to the above Stock Exchange. 

 
• Share Price Data 
The monthly high and low prices and volumes of shares of the Company at BSE Limited 
(BSE) for the year ended 31st March, 2022 are as under: 

Month High Price Low Price No. of Shares 
April 2021 8.00 8.00 473901 
May 2021 8.01 7.84 120010 

June 2021 7.84 7.6 1018 
July 2021 8.78 7.6 56066 
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August 2021 10.65 8.78 1113 
September 2021 10.65 10.65 13 

October 2021 11.73 11.18 180 
November 2021 12.00 11.73 1294 
December 2021 11.73 11.73 11703 
January 2022 17.28 11.73 3883 
February 2022 16.45 16.40 154000 
March 2022 17.25 16.25 2731 

 
• Share holding pattern of the Company as on 31.03.2022 

 
• Distribution of Shareholding as on 31.03.2022: 

No. of Shares held No. of 
Shareholders % No. of Shares % of Total 

Capital 

1 to 5000 98 64.05 7059 0.07 

5001 to 10000 5 3.27 4226 0.04 

10001 to 20000 5 3.27 7100 0.07 

20001 to 30000 - - - - 

30001 to 40000 2 1.30 7600 0.07 

40001 to 50000 - - - - 

50001 and 100000 3 1.96 25217 0.24 

100001 onwards 40 26.15 10422786 99.51 

Total 153 100.00 10473988 100.00 
 
• Share Transfer System: 
Trading in Equity Shares of the Company is permitted only in dematerialized form as per 
notification issued by the Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI). Link Intime India Private 
Limited handles both Demat and Physical Shares Transfers. 
 
The Share Transfers which are received in physical form are processed and the share certificates 
are returned within 21 days from the date of receipt, subject to Documents being valid and 
complete in all respects. 
 
• Unclaimed Dividend/ Shares 
The Company was not required to transfer any amount of unclaimed Dividend to Investor 
Education and Protection Fund (‘the IEPF’) pursuant to the provisions of Section 124(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 
• Outstanding GDRs/ ADRs/ Warrants or any convertible instruments: 

Nil 
• Plant Locations: 

Location Activity 

Sr. Category No. of Shares % (Percentage) 

1. Promoters (Including Promoters Body Corporate) 35,49,388 33.89 

2. Body Corporate (Public) 48,01,628 45.84 

3. Resident Individuals and HUF (Public) 21,22,972 20.27 

 TOTAL 1,04,73,988 100.00 
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Plot 158, 159, 160, 161, 162, Shree Samartha 
Sahakari Audyogik Vasahat Ltd., Pimpalgaon 
Baswant, Taluka - Niphad, District Nashik, 
Maharashtra  

Metallic Film Manufacturing,  
Lacquer Coated Metallic Yarn 
Manufacturing, Chemical 
Resistant Films Manufacturing  

S. No 329/2, Plot No 11 (Part) + 12+13+14 (Part), Near 
Rajasthani School, Malegaon, (Nashik) – 423203  

Grey Fabric Manufacturing  
 

 
Means of Communication to Shareholders 

• The Un-audited quarterly/ half yearly results are announced within forty-five days of 
the close of the quarter. The audited annual results are announced within sixty days 
from the closure of the financial year as per the requirement of the Listing 
Regulations. 

• The approved financial results are forthwith sent to the Stock Exchanges and are 
published in ‘Financial Express ‘(English newspaper) and ‘Mumbai Lakshadeep’(local 
language (Marathi) newspaper), within forty-eight hours of approval thereof. 
Presently the same are not sent to the shareholders separately. The Company’s 
financial results and official press releases are displayed on the Company’s Website 
i.e. www.lakhotiapoly.in 

• Management Discussion and Analysis report forms part of the Annual Report, which 
is sent to the shareholders of the Company 

• The quarterly results, shareholding pattern, quarterly compliances and all other 
corporate communication to the BSE Limited are filed electronically. The Company 
has complied with filing submissions through BSE’s BSE Listing Centre 

• SEBI processes investor complaints in a centralized web based complaints redressal 
system i.e. SCORES. Through this system a shareholder can lodge complaint against 
a Company for his grievance. The Company uploads the action taken on the 
complaint which can be viewed by the shareholder. The Company and shareholder 
can seek and provide clarifications online through SEB 

• The Company has designated the email id: info@lakhotiapoly.in.  eexclusively for 
investor relation, and the same is prominently displayed on the Company’s website 
i.e., www.lakhotiapoly.in.  

 
Address for Correspondence: 
Lakhotia Polyesters (India) Limited  
158/159 Samaratha Sahkari Aydyogik Vasahat Ltd.  
Pimpal – Gaon (Baswant), Tal Niphad,  
District Nashik, Maharashtra – 422209  
Tel: +91 02554-232000 Fax: +91 02554-232000 
Website: www.lakhotiapoly.in Email: info@lakhotiapoly.in  
CIN: L17120MH2005PLC155146 
 
Name, Designation and address of the Compliance Officer: 
Ms. Shannu Chaturvedi 
158/159 Samaratha Sahkari Audyogik Vasahat Ltd. 
Pimpal- Gaon (Baswant), Tal Niphad, District Nashik,  
Maharashtra – 422209; Tel: +91 02554-232000 
Fax: +91 02554-232000 Email: info@lakhotiapoly.in 
 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent: 

 
  AFFIRMATIONS AND DISCLOSURES  

 
Related Party Transaction: 
All transactions entered into with the Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 
2013 and Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations during the financial year were on arm’s 
length basis and do not attract the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Related party transactions have been disclosed under significant accounting policies and 
notes forming part of the Financial Statements in accordance with “IND AS”. A statement in 
summary form of transactions with Related Parties in ordinary course of business and arm’s 
length basis is periodically placed before the Audit committee for review and recommendation 
to the Board for their approval. As required under Regulation 23(1) of the Listing 

http://www.lakhotiapoly.in/
mailto:info@lakhotiapoly.in
http://www.lakhotiapoly.in/
mailto:info@lakhotiapoly.in
mailto:info@lakhotiapoly.in
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Regulations, the Company has formulated a policy on dealing with Related Party 
Transactions. The Policy is available on the website of the Company tails are as mentioned in 
Form AOC 2 which forms part of Directors Report. 
 
Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, and strictures imposed on the 
Company by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter 
related to capital markets, during last three financial years;  
 
The Company has generally complied with all the requirements of the listing agreements 
with the stock exchanges as well as regulations and guidelines of SEBI. Details of the non-
compliance and penalties during the last three financials year are as under;  

Sr. 
No. 

Date of 
order 

Amount of 
Penalty 

Reason Authority 

1. 16-10-2020 140,000 Non-compliance of regulation 33 
of the SEBI (LODR), 2015 for 
the Quarter ended June 2020 

BSE Limited  

2. 14-05-2019 90,000 Non-compliance of Regulation 
6(1) SEBI (LODR), 2015 for 
March 2019 

BSE Limited  

 
The Company has followed all relevant accounting standards notified by the Companies 
Accounting Standards Rules 2006 and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 while 
preparing its financial statements. 

 
Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy: 
Pursuant to Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Regulation 22 of the 
Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated Whistle Blower Policy for vigil mechanism 
of Directors and employees to report to the management about the unethical behaviour, 
fraud or violation of Company’s code of conduct. The mechanism provides for adequate 
safeguards against victimization of employees and Directors who use such mechanism and 
makes provision for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional 
cases. None of the personnel of the Company have been denied access to the Audit 
Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy is displayed on the Company’s website i.e., 
www.lakhotiapoly.in. 

 
Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit: 
In line with the requirements stipulated by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), 
Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit is carried out on a quarterly basis by a Practicing 
Company Secretary to confirm that the aggregate number of equity shares of the Company 
held in National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL), Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited (CDSL) and in physical form tally with the total number of issued, paid-up, listed 
and admitted capital of the Company. 

 
Disclosure of Accounting Treatment 
In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has followed the Accounting 
Standards referred to in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The significant accounting 
policies which are consistently applied are set out in the Notes to the Financial Statements.  

 
Risk Management 
Business risk evaluation and management is an ongoing process within the Company. The 
assessment is periodically examined by the Board. 

 
The Company has adequate risk assessment and minimization system in place including for 
commodities. The Company does not have material exposure of any commodity and 
accordingly, no hedging activities for the same are carried out. Therefore, there is no 
disclosure to offer in terms of SEBI circular no. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2018/0000000141 dated November 15, 2018. 
 
Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified 
institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A). Not Applicable 
 
A certificate from a Company Secretary in practice that none of the Directors on the 
Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 

http://www.lakhotiapoly.in/
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continuing as Directors of companies by the Board/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or 
any such statutory authority. 
 
The Certificate of Company Secretary in practice is annexed herewith as a part of the report. 

 
Where the Board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the Board 
which is mandatorily required, in the relevant financial year. Not Applicable 

 
Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a 
consolidated basis, to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network 
firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part. 1,50,000 
 
Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.15 
The details of number of complaints filed and disposed of during the year and pending as on 
March 31, 2022 is given in the Directors’ report. 

 
Non-mandatory requirements 
Adoption of non-mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations is being reviewed by the 
Board from time-to time. 

 
Details of Adoption of Non-Mandatory (Discretionary) Requirements 
Non-mandatory (discretionary) requirements under Regulation 27 of the Listing Regulations. 
The status of compliance with the non-mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations is 
provided below: 

• The Board 
• No separate office was maintained for Chairman and/or Managing Director of the 

Company Shareholders rights 
The Company has not adopted the practice of sending out quarterly or half-yearly 
declaration of financial performance to shareholders. Quarterly results as approved 
by the Board are disseminated to Stock Exchanges and updated on the website of the 
Company.  

• Modified opinion(s) in audit report 
There are no modified opinions in audit report 

• Reporting of Internal Auditor 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Company has appointed an Internal Auditor who reports to the Audit Committee. 
Quarterly internal audit reports are submitted to the Audit Committee which reviews 
the audit reports and suggests necessary action 

 
Compliance with the mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance as per SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 
The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements Regulation 27 of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 and submits on quarterly/yearly basis the Corporate Governance reports 
to the concerned Stock Exchanges. 

 
The provisions of regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 
46 of SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015 are fully complied with, to the extent applicable to the 
Company. All the mandatory disclosure as required in term of the provisions of SEBI (LODR), 
Regulations, 2015 are disclosed in this report. 

 
CEO / CFO CERTIFICATE: 

Appropriate certification as required under Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has been made to the Board of Directors by 
the CEO/CFO which has been taken note of by the Board. 

 
By Order of the Board of Directors 

of Lakhotia Polyesters (India) Limited 
 
 

Jayshree Lakhotia             Madhusudan Lakhotiya 
Director                     Managing Director 

      DIN: 05357609                           DIN: 00104576 



 

40 
ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22  
  
    
 

Place: Nashik 
Dated: August 05, 2022 
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DECLARATION BY THE CEO UNDER REGULATION 26(3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING 
OBLIGATION AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 REGARDING 

ADHERENCE CODE OF CONDUCT 
 

In accordance with Regulation 26(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, I hereby confirm that, all the Directors and the Senior Management Personnel 
of the Company have affirmed compliance to the Code of Conduct for the Financial Year ended 
March 31, 2022. 
 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
of Lakhotia Polyesters (India) Limited 

 
 
 
 

Madhusudan Lakhotiya 
(Managing Director) 

DIN: 00104576 
Email id: info@lakhotiapoly.in  

Place: Nashik 
Dated: August 05, 2022  
 

mailto:info@lakhotiapoly.in
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CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION 
 

CEO / CFO certification for Preparation of Financial Statements on Standalone Basis 
[Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015] 
 
To, 
The Board of Directors, 
Lakhotia Polyesters (India) Limited 
 
CEO / CFO certification for Preparation of Financial Statements on Standalone & 
Consolidated Basis  
 
We, Mr. Madhusudhan Lakhotiya, Managing Director and Mr. Vivek Rathi – Chief Financial 
Officer of the Company, hereby certify to the Board that: 
 
(a) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement prepared for the financial 

year ended on 31st March, 2022 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 
i. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any 

material fact or contain statements that might be misleading; 
ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and 

are in  compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and 
regulations. 

 
(b)  There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 

company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s code of 
conduct.  

 
(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 

reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the 
company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the 
Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of 
which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these 
deficiencies. 

 
(d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit committee that 

i. There are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during 
the year; 

ii. There are no changes in accounting policies during the year requiring disclosure in 
the notes to financial statements; and 

iii. There are no instances of significant fraud in the company’s internal control system 
over financial reporting. 

 
     For Lakhotia Polyesters (India) Limited 

 
 
 
 

       Vivek Rathi     Madhusudhan Lakhotia 
     Chief Financial Officer               Managing Director 

          DIN: 00104576  
Place: Nashik 
Date: May 26, 2022 
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Corporate Governance Compliance Certificate 

The Members of  
Lakhotia Polyesters (India) Limited 
[CIN: L17120MH2005PLC155146] 
158/159 Samartha Sahkariaudyogik Vasahat Ltd, 
Pimpal- Gaon (Baswant), 
Tal Niphad Dist. Nashik 422209 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Lakhotia Polyesters 
(India) Limited (“the Company”) for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022, as stipulated in 
Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2) and para-C and D of Schedule V to 
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘LODR”).  

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. 
This responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and 
procedures to ensure compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in 
the LODR.  

Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted 
by the Company for ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is 
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.  

We have examined relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the 
purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance 
requirements by the Company.  

Based on our examination of the relevant records and according to the information and 
explanations provided to us and the representations provided by the Management, we certify that 
the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the 
aforesaid provisions of LODR) during the financial year ended March 31, 2022, except that of 
regulation 17 of the LODR, with regard to constitution of Board and Committees.  

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company.  

For R M MIMANI & ASSOCIATES LLP 
[Company Secretaries]  
[Firm Registration No. L2015MH008300] 

Ranjana Mimani 
(Partner) 
FCS No:  6271 
CP No:  4234 
PR No.: 1065/2021 

UDIN: F006271D000752280 

Place: Mumbai  
Dated: August 05, 2022 
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF LAKHOTIA POLYSTERS (INDIA) LIMITED 

With reference to the Annexure "A" referred to in Paragraph 1 under the hearing "Report on 
other legal and regulatory requirements" of our report of even date: 

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the 
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of 
our knowledge and belief, we state that: 

1. Property, Plant and Equipments

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(b) As explained to us, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of
its property, plant and equipment by the management. In accordance with the policy,
the Company has physically verified certain property, plant and equipment during the
year and no material discrepancies were noticed in respect of assets verified during
the year. However, the record relating to physical verification has not been
maintained by the Company.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease arrangements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee) are in held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of
use assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2022.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Prohibition of Bena mi Property Transactions Act, 1988
and rules made thereunder.

2. Inventories

(a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate. Discrepancies on such physical
verification were less than 10% in aggregate for each class of inventory and have been
properly dealt with in the books of account. However, the record relating to physical
verification of inventories has not been maintained.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of� 5 crore, in
aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions
on the basis of security of current assets and hence reportin�!Y�.'�r§r�f� 3(ii)(b) of
the Order is not applicable. .,C'.:,>/-

. <(1;\ 
!// �.:>• / \ "'1._:r \\ 
,/ --� ; \ c,,,, 1\ 

1-�t N" V��� 

�--- <'): ', / '", 'f

'�\:t�:-�{}ii:i;JJ;'' 53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110
ANNUAL REPORT 2021-22 

FOR NOTES 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________ 


	BOARD REPORT
	Means of Communication to Shareholders
	 The Un-audited quarterly/ half yearly results are announced within forty-five days of the close of the quarter. The audited annual results are announced within sixty days from the closure of the financial year as per the requirement of the Listing R...
	 The approved financial results are forthwith sent to the Stock Exchanges and are published in ‘Financial Express ‘(English newspaper) and ‘Mumbai Lakshadeep’(local language (Marathi) newspaper), within forty-eight hours of approval thereof. Presentl...
	 Management Discussion and Analysis report forms part of the Annual Report, which is sent to the shareholders of the Company
	 The quarterly results, shareholding pattern, quarterly compliances and all other corporate communication to the BSE Limited are filed electronically. The Company has complied with filing submissions through BSE’s BSE Listing Centre
	 SEBI processes investor complaints in a centralized web based complaints redressal system i.e. SCORES. Through this system a shareholder can lodge complaint against a Company for his grievance. The Company uploads the action taken on the complaint w...
	 The Company has designated the email id: info@lakhotiapoly.in.  eexclusively for investor relation, and the same is prominently displayed on the Company’s website i.e., www.lakhotiapoly.in.


